

**BY-LAWS
OF
GONSTEAD CLINICAL STUDIES SOCIETY, INC.**

The Purpose of the GCSS is

1. To propagate and advance the Gonstead Technique.
2. To improve the technical and diagnostic skills of chiropractors seeking to learn the Gonstead system.
3. To aid the Chiropractic Colleges and students in the use and teaching of the Gonstead Technique.
4. To aid in the promotion of chiropractic and fellowship among Doctors of Chiropractic.
5. To aid in the funding for research and/or the execution of same to establish scientific data.

ARTICLE I OFFICES

Section 1.01. Principal and Business Offices. The corporation will maintain its principal office within the County of Dane, State of Wisconsin. The corporation may have such other offices within or without the State of Wisconsin as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the corporation may require from time to time.

Section 1.02. Registered Office. The registered office of the corporation required by the Wisconsin Statutes to be maintained in the State of Wisconsin may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Wisconsin, and the address of the registered office may be changed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. The business office of the registered agent of the corporation shall be identical to such registered office.

Section 1.03. Registered Agent. The registered agent of the corporation shall be such person or corporation as shall, from time to time, be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II MEMBERS

Section 2.01. Classes of Members. The corporation shall have five classes of members. The designation of such classes and the qualifications and rights of the members of such classes shall be as follows:

- a) Student Membership. Open to all persons currently registered in a Chiropractic College. Student members shall not have voting privileges.

b) General Membership. Open to any Doctor of Chiropractic who has attended at least one Seminar that teaches the Gonstead system of Chiropractic. General members shall have voting privileges.

c) Diplomate Membership. Open to those persons meeting the stipulations for General Membership and the qualifications set forth and approved by the Board of Directors.

d) Fellow of Gonstead Clinical Studies. Open to Diplomates with not less than 595 approved hours in the study of Gonstead Chiropractic and elected to the College of Fellows by the College of Fellows and approved by the Board of Directors.

e) Associate Member. Open to chiropractors who are retired or are no longer practicing. Associate members shall not have voting privileges.

Section 2.02 Membership Dues. The Board of Directors may determine, from time to time, the amount of annual dues and the amount of an initiation fee, if any, payable to the corporation by members of each class.

Dues shall be payable as an annual membership based on the first day payment has been received, and requirements have been met. Dues shall not be prorated for partial year memberships.

Section 2.03. Termination of Membership. The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of two-thirds of all of the members of the Board, may suspend or expel a member for cause after an appropriate hearing, and may, by a majority vote of those present at the regularly constituted meeting, terminate the membership of any member who becomes ineligible for membership, or suspend or expel any member who shall be in default in the payment of dues for a period in excess of six months.

Section 2.04. Transfer of Membership. Membership in this corporation is not transferable or assignable.

Section 2.05. Certificates of Membership. The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of certificates evidencing membership in the corporation, which shall be in such form as may be determined by the Board. Such certificates shall be signed by the Executive Director, President, or Vice-President. The name of each member and the date of issuance of the certificate shall be entered on the records of the corporation. When a member has been elected to membership and has paid any dues that may then be required, a certificate of membership in the appropriate class shall be issued in their name and delivered to them by the Secretary.

ARTICLE III MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 3.01. General Meeting. Should the Membership, which would require 50 percent of the members, wish to call a meeting before the Board for any reason, may do so by assembling a Special Meeting either in person or via internet technology.

Section 3.02. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or by not less than one-tenth of the members having voting privileges.

Section 3.03. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of the place, day and hour of any meeting of members shall be delivered, either by mail, e-mail or FAX, to each member entitled to vote at such meeting, not less than 10 or more than 50 days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President, Secretary, or the officers or persons calling the meeting. The purpose for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the mail addressed to the member at their address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with postage thereon prepaid.

Section 3.04. Quorum. The presence of 25% of the members eligible to vote shall constitute a quorum at any duly noticed meeting of the members. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of the members, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting, from time to time, without further notice.

Section 3.05. Proxies. At any meeting of members, a member entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing by the member or by their duly authorized attorney in fact. No proxy shall be valid after 11 months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 3.06. Voting by Mail. Where directors or officers are to be elected by members, such election may be conducted by mail, e-mail, FAX or in such manner as the Board of Directors shall determine.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 4.01. General Powers and Number. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The number of directors of the corporation shall be a minimum of eleven (11). All directors shall be members of the corporation.

Section 4.02. Election. Each year, the Board of Directors will designate a minimum of three members to serve on the nominating committee, which is responsible for submitting a slate of candidates for election to fill any vacancies on the Board. The general membership shall have the responsibility of electing new members from the list of nominees. Elections are done through e-mail, FAX and/or mail. A majority of all votes cast shall be necessary to elect directors.

Section 4.03. Bi-Annual Board Meetings. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held twice each calendar year, one in April and one in October.

Section 4.04. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by, or at the request of the President, Vice President in the President's absence, or any four (4) directors. The President or Vice President calling any special meeting of the Board of Directors may fix any place as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by them, and if no other place is fixed the place of the meeting shall be the principal office of the corporation in Mt. Horeb, Wisconsin.

Section 4.05. Notice: Waiver Notice of each meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given by e-mail, telephone, written notice delivered personally, mailed, FAXED to each director at their business address or at such other address as such director shall have designated with the corporation, in each case not less than five (5) days prior thereto. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid.

Whenever any notice, whatever, is required to be given to any director of the corporation under the articles of incorporation or by-laws or any provision of the law, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by any time, whether before or after the time of meeting, by the director entitled to such notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting and objects thereto to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section 4.06. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law or these by-laws six (6) directors or 50% of the existing Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but a majority of the directors present (though less than such quorum) may adjourn the meeting, from time to time, without further notice.

Section 4.07. Manner of Acting. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by the articles of incorporation or these by laws.

Section 4.08. Conduct of Meetings. The President, and in their absence, a Vice President, and in their absence, any Director chosen by the Directors present, shall call meetings of the Board of Directors to order and shall act as chair of the meeting. The presiding officer may appoint any director or other person present to act as Secretary of the meeting. Questions of order will be referred to Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 4.09. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors, including a vacancy created by an increase in the number of Directors, may be filled until the next succeeding year by an eligible member, upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors at any meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present; provided, that in case of a vacancy created by the removal of a Director by vote of the Directors, the Directors shall have the right to fill such vacancy at the same meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Section 4.10. Compensation. The Board of Directors shall not be paid any compensation for their services to the corporation, other than reimbursement for their

reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in serving the corporation, according to such regulation as the Board shall specify. The Board of Directors shall have authority to provide for or to delegate authority to an appropriate committee to provide for Board Liability Insurance.

Section 4.11. Presumption of Assent. A Director of the corporation who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof of which they are a member, at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless their dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless they shall file their written dissent to such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a director who vetoed in favor of such action.

Section 4.12. Committees. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors at any meeting at which a quorum is present, may designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one director who sits as chairperson and 2-3 directors who are elected by the Board of Directors, which to the extent provided in said resolution as initially adopted, and as thereafter supplemented or amended by further resolution adopted by a like vote, shall have and may exercise, when the Board of Directors is not in session, the powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, except action in respect to election of the principal officers or the filling of vacancies in committees created pursuant to this section. The Board of Directors may elect one or more of its members as alternate members of any such committee who may take the place of any absent member or members at any meeting of such committee, upon request by the chairman of such meeting. Each such committee shall fix its own rules governing the conduct of its activities and shall make such reports to the Board of Directors of its activities as the Board of Directors may request.

Section 4.13. Unanimous Consent Without Meeting. Any action, required or permitted by the articles of incorporation or by-laws or any provision of law to be taken by the Board of Directors at a meeting or by resolution may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all the directors then in office.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Section 5.01. Name, Election and Term. The Board of Directors shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer, immediate past President, and seven (7) Gonstead Diplomates or Gonstead Fellows that are nominated by a nominating committee which is appointed by the President, approved by the Board of Directors and elected at the convention assembled. The officers and Board of Directors take office at the close of the semi-annual meeting (convention assembled). Six (6) officers and Board of Directors shall serve a two-year term and six (5) shall serve a three-year term. Officers, except the Secretary-Treasurer, may only serve one two-year term consecutively. The Board of Directors may be re-elected for additional terms not to exceed three terms consecutively.

Section 5.02. Removal. Any officer or agent may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors present at a meeting of the Board

of Directors called for that purpose, at which a majority of the Board of Directors is present, whenever in their judgment, the best interest of the corporation will be served thereby. Such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment shall not of itself create contract rights.

Section 5.03. Vacancies. A vacancy in any general office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term, by the vote of the majority at any meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present.

Section 5.04. The President. The President shall be the principal operating officer of the corporation and subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all the day to day business and affairs of the corporation.

Section 5.05. The Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of their death, inability or refusal to act, or in the event for any reason it shall be impractical for the President to act personally, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order designated by the Board of Directors or in the absence of any designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties and have such authority as, from time to time, may be delegated or assigned to him/her by the President, or by the Board of Directors. The execution of any instrument of the corporation by any vice President shall be conclusive evidence, as third parties, of his/her authority to act in the stead of the President.

Section 5.06. The Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) Keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws or as required by law; (c) Be custodian of the corporate records; (d) Keep or arrange for the keeping of a register of the post office address of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such member; and (e) In general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and have such other duties and exercise such authority as, from time to time, may be delegated or assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.07. The Treasurer. The Treasurer shall in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and have such other duties and exercise such other authority as, from time to time, may be delegated or assigned to them by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.08. Assistants and Acting Officers. The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint any person(s) to act as assistant to any officer, or as agent for the corporation or to perform the duties of such officer whenever, for any reason it is impracticable for such officer to act personally, and such assistant or acting officer or other agent so appointed by the Board of Directors shall have the power to perform all the duties of the office to which they are so appointed to be assistant, or as to which they are so appointed to act, accept as such power may be otherwise defined or restricted by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.08(a) Should the Board appoint an assistant, the Executive Director's duties may entail: Contract negotiations with schools and hotels for meetings and seminars,

tax preparation, interaction with public queries regarding the Gonstead technique and doctor referrals, organize Board meeting agendas and dinners, initiate and annually review Indemnity and Liability insurance policies, edit publications, order awards, and oversee workings of various committees.

Section 5.09(b) Should the Board appoint an assistant, the Executive Secretary's duties may entail: Management of day-to-day GCSS operations; Including communications, website development and management, creating record keeping systems, virtual credit card processing systems, accounts receivable/payable, research fund tracking & statistics, newsletter development and editing, Meeting of the Minds continuing education facilitator, membership development, and retention. Prepare and provide the Board of Directors Meeting with Committee Reports. Work closely with the Executive Director and many committee chairpersons assisting them to achieve successful outcomes of their missions and projects.

ARTICLE VI CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS; SPECIAL CORPORATE ACTS

Section 6.01. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute or deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances. In the absence of other designation, all deeds, mortgages and instruments of assignment or pledge made by the corporation shall be executed in the name of the corporation by the President or any Vice President, and when so executed no other party to such instrument or any third party shall be required to make any inquiry into the authority of the signing officer or officers.

Section 6.02. The Conveyance of Real Estate. The President or any Vice President shall have the authority to sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge or otherwise convey or dispose of all or any part of the real property, fixtures, improvements or chattels real of this corporation, by instruments duly executed according to law and attested by the Secretary, the Treasurer, or any assistant Secretary or Assistant Treasurer, and in such case authorization or consent of the members or Directors shall be required.

Section 6.03. The Use of Corporate Trustee. The Board of Directors may authorize the deposit of all or any portion of the assets of the corporation with a corporate trustee under such custodial or trust arrangements as the Board shall deem necessary or desirable, provided that such corporate trustee shall be a bank having trust powers, organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof, or a trust company organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof.

Section 6.04. Loans. No indebtedness of borrowed money shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation, and no evidence of such indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by or under the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 6.05. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents, of the corporation and in such manner as shall, from time to time, be determined by or under the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 6.06. Deposits. All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited, from time to time, to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as may be selected by or under the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 6.07. Voting of Securities Owned by this Corporation. Subject always to the specific directions of the Board of Directors (a) any shares or other securities issued by any other corporation and owned or controlled by this corporation may be voted at any meeting of security holders of such other corporation by the President if they be present, or in their absence by any Vice President who may be present, and (b) whenever, in the judgment of the President or, in their absence a Vice President, it is desirable for this corporation to execute a proxy or written consent in respect to any shares or other securities issued by any other corporation and owned by this corporation, such proxy or consent shall be executed in the name of this corporation by the President or any Vice President of this corporation, without necessity of any authorization by the Board of Directors or countersignature or attestation by another officer. Any person, or persons, designated in the manner above stated as a proxy or proxies of this corporation shall have full right, power and authority to vote the shares or other securities issued by such other corporation and owned by this corporation the same as such shares or other securities might be voted by this corporation.

ARTICLE VII SEAL

The corporation shall have no corporate seal.

ARTICLE VIII INDEMNIFICATION

Section 8.01 This corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of this corporation) by reason of the fact that they are or were a director, officer, employee or agent of this corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if they acted in good faith and in a manner they reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that their conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that such person did not act in good faith and in a manner which they reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that their conduct was unlawful.

Section 8.02 This corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that they are or were a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee, or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if they acted in good faith and in a manner they reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the corporation, except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of their duties to the corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication or liability but in view of all circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses to the extent that the court shall deem proper.

Section 8.03 Any indemnification under section 8.01 or 8.02, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by this corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee, or agent is proper in the circumstances because they have met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in section 8.01 or section 8.02, as the case may be. Such determination shall be made: (a) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to such action, suite or proceeding; or (b) if such quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion.

Section 8.04 Expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he/she is entitled to be indemnified by the corporation as authorized in the manner provided in section 8.03. Any such advancement should be made only upon a determination, made in the manner provided in section 8.03, that the director or officer is likely to meet the requisite standard of conduct set forth in section 8.01 or section 8.02, as the case may be.

Section 8.05 Indemnification provided herein shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation and shall ensure the benefit of the heirs and personal representatives of such a person.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS

Section 9.01 By Directors. These by-laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new by-laws may be adopted by the Board of Directors by affirmative vote of a majority of directors present at either a bi-annual meeting, or at a meeting of the Board of Directors called for that purpose at which a majority of the Board of Directors is present and ratified by the approval of the majority of membership vote.

Section 9.02 Implied Amendments. Any action taken or authorized by the Board of Directors, which would be inconsistent with the by-laws then in effect but is taken or authorized by affirmative vote of not less than the number of directors required to amend the by-laws so that the by-laws would be consistent with such action, shall be given the same effect as though the by-laws had been temporarily amended or suspended so far, but only so far, as is necessary to permit the specific action so taken or authorized and ratified by the convention assembled at the annual membership meeting.

ARTICLE X DISSOLUTION

Section 10.01 In the event of dissolution of the corporation, the assets of the corporation shall be distributed as provided in the articles of incorporation.

ARTICLE XI FISCAL YEAR

Section 11.01. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be January 1 to December 31.

On September 26, 1987, at the General Assembly Meeting at Mount Horeb, Wisconsin, the by-laws were amended;

Currently, Article IV, Revenue: Paragraph A reads:

Dues for general membership are \$25, and shall be paid to the G.C.S.S. General dues may be paid directly to the G.C.S.S. if the member does not participate in a local study group.

It is proposed to read:

Dues for general membership are set by the Board of Directors, and shall be paid to the G.C.S.S. General membership dues may be paid directly to the G.C.S.S. if the member does not participate in local study group.

On September 16, 1989, the Gonstead Clinical Studies Society General Assembly meeting ratified the by-laws with the following articles:

- A) Article III, Subject A, Paragraph 3; Diplomate of Gonstead Clinical Studies (DGCS): Those persons meeting the stipulation for General Membership and the qualifications set forth, and approved by the Board of Directors.
- B) Article IV, Paragraph A; Fellow of Gonstead Clinical Studies (FGCS): Those persons meeting the stipulations and achieving the Diplomate status and having not less than five hundred ninety five (595) approved graduate hours in the study of Gonstead Philosophy, Science and Art of Chiropractic, nominated and elected by appropriate persons and approved by the Board of Directors
- C) Article V, Subject A, Paragraph 2, Sub-paragraph a: The Board of Directors shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer, Immediate Past President and eight Gonstead Diplomates or Gonstead Fellows nominated by a nominating committee appointed by the President, approved by the Board of Directors and elected at the convention assembled. Paragraph b: the officers and Board of Directors take office at the close of the semi-annual meeting (Convention-assembled) with the passing of the gavel at the dinner ceremony. Paragraph c; All Officers and Board of Directors shall serve a two-year term. Officers except Secretary-Treasurer may only serve one, two-year consecutively. Board of Directors may be re-elected for additional terms, not to exceed three terms consecutively.

February 15, 1990

THE COLLEGE OF FELLOWS OF GONSTEAD CLINICAL STUDIES

A Fellow of Gonstead is that person meeting the stipulations in Article 3, Subject A, Paragraph 3, regarding the Diplomate of Gonstead Clinical Studies and having not less than 595 approved graduate hours in the study of the Gonstead philosophy, science, and art of chiropractic, nominated and elected by the majority of the College of Fellows of Gonstead.

The College of Fellows of Gonstead shall be bound by the constitution and by-laws of the Gonstead Clinical Studies Society but may elect their own officers and conduct their own business as they see fit, within those parameters.

A full report of the College Annual Activities shall be filed with the Gonstead Clinical Studies Society Secretary's Office thirty days prior to the annual meeting.

OUTLINE FOR SYLLABUS ON GRADUATE GONSTEAD CHIROPRACTIC SCIENCE AND ART LEADING TO DIPLOMATE STATUS

I. General Considerations

- A. Courses in graduate Gonstead Chiropractic Science and Art should be offered by approved chiropractic colleges using a Gonstead Seminar as a major vehicle, an extension of said colleges. These courses must meet a minimum of course content and classroom hours of attendance and meet the approval of the Board of Directors of the Gonstead Clinical Studies Society. In addition, this sponsoring college and instructors may have requirements of enrollment and continued participation. On completion of the courses and meeting the requirement set forth by the Gonstead Clinical Studies Society and/or colleges, the graduate would be eligible for examination and certification.

II. Purpose and objectives

- A. The general purpose of this educational program with its continuance of certification is to advance the ability of a Doctor of Chiropractic to be able to select, perform, order and evaluate the necessary procedures to manage the neuro-muscular system and its bio-mechanical properties with confidence and expertise of a specialist. General objectives to create a class of chiropractic doctor who is recognized for his unique and effective Chiropractic Science and Art.

III. Subject Matter

- A. The course shall be divided into five categories:
 1. History and theory
 2. Pelvis and lumbar.
 3. Cervicals and thoracics.
 4. Upper cervical.
 5. Extremities

totaling 136 hours of classroom study requiring 8 seminars. An additional 68 hours of classroom study requiring 4 seminars in elective subjects totaling 204 classroom hours of instruction.

IV. Methods of instruction

- A. To be decided and agreed upon by the Gonstead Seminar and other interested persons.

On October 2002, at the Board of Directors Meeting, the By-Laws were amended as per the General Membership via proxy vote to read:

Section 4.01. General Powers and Number. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The number of directors of the corporation shall be sixteen (16). All directors shall be members of the corporation.

Section 4.06. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law or these by-laws, seven (7) directors or 50% of existing directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but a majority of the directors present (though less than such quorum) may adjourn the meeting, from time to time, without further notice.

Section 5.01. Name, Election and Term. The Board of Directors shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer, immediate past President and twelve (12) Gonstead Diplomates or Gonstead Fellows that are nominated by a nominating committee which is appointed by the President, approved by the Board of Directors and elected at the convention assembled. The officers and Board of Directors take office at the close of the semi-annual meeting (convention assembled). Six (6) Board of Directors shall serve a two year term and six (6) shall serve a three year term. Officers, except the Secretary-Treasurer may only serve one two year term. Officers, except the Secretary-Treasurer may only serve one two year term consecutively. The Board of Directors may be re-elected for additional terms not to exceed three terms consecutively.

Mission Statement

The Purpose of GCSS is:

1. To propagate and advance the Gonstead Technique.
2. To improve the technical and diagnostic skill of chiropractors.
3. To aid the Chiropractic Colleges and students in the use and teaching of the Gonstead Technique.
4. To aid in the promotion of chiropractic and fellowship among Doctors of Chiropractic.
5. To aid in the funding for research and/or the execution of same to establish scientific data.